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Independent Auditor's Report 

Board of Commissioners 
Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 

d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 
A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Delhi, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of the Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital (the District), a component unit of Richland Parish Policy Jury, as of and 
for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the District, as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in 
financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements" section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District, and 
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to 
our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
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Board of Commissioners 
Hospital Service District No. 1 A of the Parish of Richland 

d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as 
a going concern for 12 months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
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Board of Commissioners 
Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 

d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Compensation, 
Reimbursements, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer, the 
Combining Statement of Net Position and the Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. 

The Schedule of Compensation, Reimbursements, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head or 
Chief Executive Officer has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 

The Combining Statement of Net Position and the Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the 
consolidated financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 26, 
2024, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

FOlz-V I LLP 

Dallas, Texas 
February 26, 2024 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Introduction 

This management's discussion and analysis of the financial performance of Hospital Service District No. 
lA of the Parish of Richland d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital (the District) provides an overview of the 
District's financial activities for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022. It should be read in 
conjunction with the accompanying financial statements of the District. 

Financial Highlights 

• Cash and investments increased in 2023 by $7,625,384, or 21.4%, and increased in 2022 by 
$10,560,891, or 42.0%. 

• The District's net position increased in both 2023 and 2022, with a $7,602,101, or 14.9% increase 
in 2023, and a $8,182,772, or 19.1% increase in 2022. 

• The District reported operating income of S3,743,788 in 2(123. In 2(122, the District reported an 
operating income of S4,470,849. 

• Net nonoperating revenues decreased by $242,755, or 6.5% in 2023, compared to 2022, and 
decreased by $2,931,702, or 44.1% in 2022, compared to 2021. 

Using This Annual Report 

The District's financial statements consist of three statements — a statement of net position; a statement of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position; and a statement of cash flows. These statements provide 
information about the activities of the District, including resources held by the District but restricted for 
specific purposes by creditors, contributors, grantors or enabling legislation. The District is accounted for 
as a business-type activity and presents its financial statements using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position 

One of the most important questions asked about any hospital's finances is "Is the hospital as a whole 
better or worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The statement of net position and the statement of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position report information about the District's resources and its 
activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all restricted and unrestricted 
assets and all liabilities using the accrual basis of accountirw. Using the accrual basis of accounting means 
that all of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is 
received or paid. 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in them. The District's total net 
position — the difference between assets and liabilities — is one measure of the District's financial health 
or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net position are an indicator of 
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in 
the District's patient base, changes in legislation and regulations, measures of the quantity and quality of 
services provided to its patients and local economic factors should also be considered to assess the overall 
financial health of the District. 

The Statement of Cash Flows 

The statement of cash flows reports cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash and cash 
equivalents resulting from four defined types of activities. It provides answers to such questions as where 
did cash come from, what was cash used for and what was the change in cash and cash equivalents during 
the reporting period. 

The District's Net Position 

The District's net position is the difference between its assets and liabilities reported in the statements of 
net position. The District's net position increased by S7,602,101, or 13.3% in 2023 over 2022, and by 
S8,182,772, or 19.1% in 2022 over 2021, as shown in Table 1. 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Table 1: Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position 

2023 2022 2021 

Assets 

   

Cash and investments $ 43,309,501 $ 35,684,117 $ 25,123,226 
Patient accounts receivable, net 3,862,549 3,530,515 3,832,842 
Other current assets 3,63(1,59(1 3,707,097 5,510,310 
Capital assets, net 10,334,824 9,975,250 1(1,223,921 
Other assets 236,088 236,088 236,088 

Total assets S 61,373,552 S 53,133,067 $ 44,926,387 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities $ 2,677,494 $ 2,039,110 $ 2,015,202 

Total liabilities 2,677,494 2,039,110 2,015,202 

Net Position 

   

Net investment in capital assets 9,835,621 9,966,417 10,076,161 
Unrestricted 48,860,437 41,127,540 32,835,024 

Total net position 58,696,058 51,093,957 42,911,185 

Total liabilities and net position $ 61,373,552 $ 53,133,067 $ 44,926,387 

The most significant change in the District's financial position from 2022 to 2023 was the increase in 
cash and investments of 57,625,384. The District had an operating income of $3,743,788 and 
nonoperating revenues of $3,469,168, which contributed to the increase in cash and investments. 

The most significant change in the District's financial position from 2021 to 2022 was the increase in 
cash and investments of S10,560,891, which was attributable to increased operating revenues, specifically 
net patient service revenue, and fewer cash expenditures in 2022 for capital assets as compared to 2021. 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Operating Results and Changes in the District's Net Position 

In 2023 and 2022, tlie District's net position increased by $7,602,101 and $8,182,772, respectively, as 
shown in Table 2. 

Table 2: Operating Results and Changes in Net Position 

 

2023 2022 2021 

Operating Revenues 

   

Net patient service revenue $ 31,3(18,4(18 $ 30,031,947 $ 27,401,749 
Grant revenue 3,121,409 3,208,815 3,264,329 
Other 2,964,581 2,977,005 3,054,138 

Total operating revenues 37,394,398 36,217,767 33,720,216 

Operating Expenses 

   

Salaries and wages 17,144,693 15,586,432 16,208,828 
Employee benefits 3,898,658 3,935,278 3,812,777 
Purchased services and professional fees 4,581,901 4,724,358 4,365,366 
Supplies and other 7,063,774 6,571,948 6,448,494 
Depreciation and arnortization 961,584 928,902 707,521 

Total operating expenses 33,650,610 31,746,918 31,542,986 

Operating Income 3,743,788 4,470,849 2,177,23(1 

Nonoperating Revenues 

   

Property taxes 846,58() 880,826 818,889 
Investment income 1,280,998 17(_1,422 182,391 
Noncapital grants and gifts 1,341,59(1 2,660,675 5,642,345 

Total nonoperating revenues 3,469,168 3,711,923 6,643,625 

Capital Grants & Special Item 389,145 

 

3,202,867 

Increase in Net Position $ 7,602,101 $ 8,182,772 x 12,023,722 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Operating Results 

The first component of the overall change in the District's net position is its operating income or loss — 
generally, the difference between net patient service and other operating revenues and the expenses 
incurred to perform those services. The District has reported operating income for the past three years, 
2023, 2022, and 2021. Grants and property taxes (nonoperating revenues) levied by the District have 
provided additional resources to enable the District to serve lower income and other residents. 

The District reported operating income of $3,743,788 for 2023, which decreased by S727,061, compared 
to 2022. The primary components of the change in operating results were: 

• A decrease in grant and other operating revenue of approximately S100,000 or 1.6%. 

• An increase in total operating expenses of approximately S1,904,000 or 6.0%. 

The District reported operating income of $4,470,849 for 2022, which increased by S2,293,619, compared 
to 2021. The primary components of the change in operating results were: 

• An increase in net patient service revenue of approximately $2,630,000 or 9.6%. 

• An increase in total operating expenses of approximately $204,000 or 0.6%. 

Nonoperating Revenues 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) consist primarily of property taxes levied by the District and 
noncapital grants and gifts. Noncapital grants and gifts decreased by S1,319,085, or 49.6% in 2023, 
cornpared to 2022, due to the recognition of Provider Relief Fund revenue as provided for in the CARES 
Act and discussed in Note 10. 

Capital Grants and Gifts 

The District receives both capital and operating grants frorn various state and federal agencies for specific 
programs. The District received capital grants and gifts of $389,145 and SO in 2023 and 2022, 
respectively. 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Grant Expenses 

The District actively applies for available state and federal grants. A majority of the grants are 
reimbursement grants requiring the District to spend the money for an approved purchase and then 
request reimbursement from the grantor. The revenues and expenses associated with these grants 
generally offset each other. The District recorded approximately $1,342,000 and $2,661,000 of noncapital 
grants and gifts in 2023 and 2022, respectively; however, the expenses associated with these grant 
receipts have been recorded in operating expenses for each year. These amounts are inclusive of the 
Provider Relief Funds recognized during 2023 and 2022, as discussed in Noie 10. 

The District's Cash Flows 

Changes in the District's cash flows are consistent with changes in operating income and nonoperating 
revenues and expenses for 2023 and 2022, as discussed earlier. 

Capital Asset 

At the end of 2023 and 2022, the District had $10,334,824 and S9,975,250, respectively, of net capital 
assets, as detailed in Noie 5 to the financial statements. 

Contacting the District's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide our patients, suppliers, taxpayers and creditors with a general 
overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. 
Questions about this report and requests for additional financial infonnation should be directed to the 
District's Chief Executive Officer at Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland, 407 
Cincinnati Street, Delhi, Louisiana 71232 or calling 318.878.5171. 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Statements of Net Position 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Assets 

Current Assets 
2023 2022 

  

Cash $ 8,592,491 S 30,25(1,658 
Short-term investments - certificates of deposit 33,775,731 4,519,778 
Board designated - short-term investments 941,279 913,681 
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance; 

2023 - 51,952,000; 2022 - 52,012,000 3,862,549 3,530,515 
Estimated amounts due from third-party payers 1,163,553 1,56(1,378 
Grant and other receivables 1,035,933 840,246 
Supplies 995,183 1,052,764 
Prepaid expenses and other 435,921 253,709 

Total current assets 50,802,640 42,921,729 

Capital Assets, Net 1(1,334,824 9,975,25(1 

Other Assets 236,088 236,088 

Total assets $ 61,373,552 S 53,133,067 

See Notes to Financial Statements 



Liabilities and Net Position 

Current Liabilities 
2023 2022 

  

Accounts payable $ 1,228,647 $ 798,700 

Accrued expenses 1,262,8(19 1,093,880 

Revenue received in advance 58,008 18,500 
Estimated self-insured health insurance costs 128,030 128,030 

Total current liabilities 2,677,494 2,039,11() 

Net Position 

  

Net investment in capital assets 9,835,621 9,966,417 
Unrestricted 48,86(1,437 41,127,54(_1 

Total net position 58,696,058 51,093,957 

Total liabilities and net position $ 61,373,552 $ 53,133,067 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Operating Revenues 

Net patient service revenue, net of provision for 

uncollectible accounts; 2023 - $1,260,000; 

2023 2022 

  

2()22 - S1,220,000 31,308,408 30,031,947 

Grant revenue 3,121,409 3,208,815 
Other 2,964,581 2,977,005 

Total operating revenues 37,394,398 36,217,767 

Operating Expenses 

  

Salaries and wages 17,144,693 15,586,432 
Employee benefits 3,898,658 3,935,278 
Purchased services and professional fees 4,581,901 4,724,358 
Supplies and other 7,063,774 6,571,948 
Depreciation and amortization 961,584 928,902 

Total operating expenses 33,650,61(1 31,746,918 

Operating Income 3,743,788 4,470,849 

Nonoperating Revenues 

  

Property taxes 846,580 880,826 
Investment income 1,280,998 170,422 
Noncapital grants and gifts 1,341,59(1 2,66(1,675 

Total nonoperating revenues 3,469,168 3,711,923 

Income Before Capital Grants 7,212,956 8,182,772 

Capital Grants 389,145 

 

Increase in Net Position 7,602,101 8,182,772 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 51,093,957 42,911,185 

Net Position, End of Year S 58,696,058 51,093,957 

See Notes to Financial Statements 11 



Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities 

2023 2022 

  

Receipts from and on behalf of patients 31,218,786 S 31,624,944 
Payments to suppliers and contractors (11,641,980) (1(1,962,828) 
Payments to employees (20,899,574) (19,588,509) 
Other receipts, net 6,349,104 6,360,261 

Net cash provided by operating activities 5,026,336 7,433,868 

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities 

  

Property taxes supporting operations 846,58() 880,826 
Refund to District of principal and interest paid on PPP loan 

 

342,000 
CARES Act funding received 

 

1,224,854 
Noncapital grants and gifts 1,244,25(1 1,335,821 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 2,090 830 3,783,501 

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Purchase of capital assets (830,788) (826,900) 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (830,788) (826,900) 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 

  

Interest on investments 1,339,006 170,422 
Purchase of investments (34,776,698) (5,433,459) 
Proceeds from disposition of investments 5,493,147 5,389,272 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (27,944,545) 126,235 

Increase (Decrease) in Cash (21,658,167) 1(1,516,7(14 

Cash, Beginning of Year 30,250,658 19,733,954 

Cash, End of Year 8,592,491 S 3(1,25(1,658 

See Notes to Financial Statements 12 



Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Statements of Cash Flows (Continued) 

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Reconciliation of Operating Inconie to Net Cash Provided 
by Operating Activities 

2023 2022 

  

Operating income 3,743,788 4,470,849 
Depreciation and amortization 961,584 928,902 
Provision for uncollectible accounts 1,257,977 1,219,738 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 

  

Patient accounts receivable ( 1,590,011) (917,411) 
Estimated amounts due from third-party payers 396,825 1,290,670 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 90,006 262,835 
Other assets and liabilities 166,167 178,285 

Net cash prov ded by opera ing activities 5,0?6,336 7,433,868 

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities 
Capital asset acquisitions included in accounts payable and 

accrued expenses 499,203 8,833 

See Notes to Financial Statements 13 



Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations and Reporting Entity 

Hospital Service District No. lA of the Parish of Richland d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital (the 
District) is located in Delhi, Louisiana. The District was created on April 18, 1989, by the Richland 
Parish Police Jury. It is comprised of and embraces the territory contained within Ward 1 of the 
Parish of Richland, State of Louisiana, as constituted as of the date of the ordinance. It is a critical 
access hospital located in Delhi. The District provides inpatient, outpatient and emergency care 
services for the residents of Delhi and the surrounding area. Admitting physicians are primarily 
practitioners in the local area. 

Effective October 1, 1989, Richland Parish Hospital Service District No. 1 transferred operations 
of the District in Delhi, Louisiana to Hospital Service District No. lA of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Ricliland Parish Hospital, along with all related assets, liabilities and equity. 

The District operates and manages a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) d.b.a. Delhi 
Community Health Center. The FQHC began operations on October 8, 2012. The FQHC earns 
revenues by providing primary and preventive health, behavioral health and dental care to indigent 
and low-income patients in the same geographic area and grants funding from the U.S. Department 
of Health and Human Services in support of its commitment to provide services to a higher 
percentage of indigent patients. The FQHC is considered an operating division of the District. 

Richland Health Services, Inc. (RHI) is a separate, not-for-profit corporation, which was organized 
exclusively to provide the required governance and oversight as stipulated by program guidelines 
for "Public Entity" models of the FQHC's operations for the delivery of primary and preventative 
health care services to the underserved populations in the same geographic area and does not have 
financial transactions. The RHI Board of Directors does not have the same composition as the 
District's Board of Commissioners. The District and RHI, through a co-applicant agreement, 
collaboratively operate the FQHC clinics. RHI is considered an affiliate rather than a component 
unit of the District. 

The District is a political subdivision of the Richland Parish Police Jury whose jurors are elected 
officials. The District's Commissioners are appointed by the Richland Parish Police Jury. As the 
governing authority of the parish for reporting purposes, the Richland Parish Police Jury is the 
financial reporting entity for the District. Accordingly, the District was determined to be a 
component unit of the Ricliland Parish Police Jury. The accompanying financial statements present 
information only on the funds maintained by the District. 

Affiliated organizations include Richland Parish Hospital Service District No. 1, Richland Parish 
Hospital Service District No. 1B and the Richland Parish Police Jury. The districts are related 
because they are all political subdivisions of the Richland Parish Police Jury who appoints their 
commissioners. 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

The Delhi Health Care Foundation (the Foundation) is a 501(c)3 nonprofit health organization, 
established in order to promote and support the Hospital in the provision of health care. The 
Foundation is a separate legal entity but is financially inteaated with the District, and is reported as 
a blended component unit of the District and does not issue separate financial statements. The 
Foundation had no activity during 2023 and 2022. 

Basis of Accounting and Presentation 

The financial statements of the District have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using 
the economic resources measurement focus. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities 
from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange transaction takes 
place, while those from government-mandated or voluntary nonexchange transactions (principally 
federal and state grants) are recognized when all applicable eligibility requirements are met. 
Operating revenues and expenses include exchange transactions and program-specific, 
goveinment-mandated or voluntary nonexchange transactions. Government-mandated 
nonexchange transactions that are not program specific, property taxes, investment income and 
interest on capital assets - related debt are included in nonoperating revenues (expenses). The 
District first applies restricted net position when an expense or outlay is incurred for purposes for 
which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires rnanagement to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and deferred inflows and outflows of resources 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Patient Accounts Receivable 

The District reports patient accounts receivable for services rendered at net realizable amounts 
frorn third-party payers, patients and others. The District provides an allowance for uncollectible 
accounts based upon a review of outstandirw receivables, historical collection information and 
existirw economic conditions. 

Supplies 

Supply inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Costs are determined using the first-in, 
first-out rnethod. 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

lnvestments and Investment lncome 

Investments in non-negotiable certificates of deposit are carried at amortized cost. 

Investment income consists primarily of interest income from certificates of deposit. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or acquisition value at the date of 
donation if acquired by gift. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful life of each asset. The following estimated useful lives are being used by the 
District. 

Land improvements 10 - 20 years 
Buildings and leasehold improvements 5 - 40 years 
Equipment 3 - 20 years 
Furniture 3 - 5 years 
Vehicles 2 - 4 years 

Capital Asset lmpairment 

The District evaluates capital assets for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate a 
significant, unexpected decline in the service utility of a capital asset has occurred. If a capital asset 
is tested for impairment and the magnitude of the decline in service utility is significant and 
unexpected, the capital asset historical cost and related accumulated depreciation are decreased 
proportionately such that the net decrease equals the impairment loss. No asset impairment was 
recognized during the years ended September 30, 2023 or 2022. 

Compensated Absences 

District policies permit most employees to accumulate vacation and sick leave benefits that may be 
realized as paid time off or, in limited circumstances, as a cash payment. Expense and the related 
liability are recognized as vacation benefits are earned, whether the employee is expected to realize 
the benefit as time off or in cash. Sick leave benefits expected to be realized as paid time off are 
recognized as expense when the time off occurs, and no liability is accrued for such benefits 
employees have earned but not yet realized. Compensated absence liabilities are computed using 
the regular pay and termination pay rates in effect at the statements of net position date. 

16 



Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to and destniction of 
assets; business interniption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural 
disasters; medical malpractice; and employee health, dental and accident benefits. Commercial 
insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from such matters other than employee health 
claims. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three preceding 
years. 

The District is self-insured for a portion of its exposure to risk of loss from employee health claims. 
Annual estimated provisions are accrued for the self-insured portion of employee health claims and 
include an estimate of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not yet 
reported. 

Net Position 

Net position of the District is classified in two components on its statements of net position. 

• Net investment in capital assets consists of capital, lease and subscription assets net of 
accumulated depreciation and atnortization and reduced by the outstanding balances of 
borrowings used to finance the purchase, use, or constniction of those assets. 

• Unrestricted net position is the remaining net position that does not meet the definition of 
net investment in capital assets or restricted net position. 

Net Patient Service Revenue 

The District has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments to the District at 
arnounts different from its established rates. Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated 
net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers and others for services rendered and 
includes estimated retroactive revenue adjustments and a provision for uncollectible accounts. 
Retroactive adjustments are considered in the recognition of revenue on an estimated basis in the 
period the related services are rendered, and such estimated amounts are revised in future periods 
as adjustments become known. 

Charity Care 

The District provides care without charge or at arnounts less than its established rates to patients 
meeting certain criteria under its charity care policy. Because the District does not pursue 
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, these amounts are not reported as net 
patient service revenue. 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Property Taxes 

The District levies a property tax on all property subject to taxation in the service district. In 2010, 
a tax continuation proposition duly carded by a majority of votes cast. Under this proposition, the 
District will continue to levy a tax on all property subject to taxation in the District for a period of 
10 years, beginning with the year 2011 and ending in the year 2020. In 2021, the millage rate of the 
District was renewed for a period of 1() years, beginning with the year 2021 and ending in the year 
2030 at a rate of 7.90. Such rate may be subject to adjustment from time to time due to 
reassessment. The purpose of the tax is for constructing, maintaining, improving and operating the 
District. Property taxes are collected through the local sheriff s office and remitted, net of 
collection fees, to the District. 

Property taxes are levied by the District on October 1 of each year based on the preceding 
January 1 assessed property values. To secure payment, an enforceable lien attaches to the property 
on January 1, when the value is assessed. Property taxes become due and payable when levied on 
October I. This is the date on which an enforceable legal claim arises, and the District records a 
receivable for the property tax assessment, less an allowance for uncollectible taxes. Property taxes 
are considered delinquent after January 31 of the following year. 

The District received approximately 2.0% of its financial support from property taxes in both 2023 
and 2022. These funds were used to support the District's operating activities. 

lncome Taxes 

As an essential government function of the parish, the District is generally exempt from federal and 
state income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code and a similar provision of state 
law. However, the District is subject to federal income tax on any unrelated business taxable 
income. 

Note 2: Net Patient Service Revenue 

The District has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments to the District at 
amounts different from its established rates. These payment arrangements include: 

Medicare - The District is certified as a Critical Access Hospital (CAH) by Medicare. As a 
CAH, the District is reimbursed for substantially all inpatient and outpatient services to 
Medicare beneficiaries based on reasonable costs. Additionally, as a CAH, the District's 
licensed beds are limited to 25, and the District's acute average length of stay may not 
exceed 96 hours. The District is reimbursed for substantially all services at tentative rates, 
with final settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports by the District 
and audits thereof by the Medicare administrative contractor. 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Medicaid - Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are 
reimbursed under a cost reimbursement methodology for certain services and at 
prospectively determined rates for all other services. The District is reimbursed for cost 
reimbursable services at tentative rates, with final settlement determined after submission 
of annual cost reports by the District and audits thereof by the Medicaid administrative 
contractor. 

Other - Payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance 
organizations, and preferred provider organizations provide for payment to the District 
using prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established charges 
and prospectively determined daily rates. 

Approximately 80% of net patient service revenue are from participation in the Medicare and 
state-sponsored Medicaid programs for both the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022. Laws 
and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to 
interpretation and change. As a result, it is reasonably possible that recorded estimates will change 
materially in the near term. 

The District entered into a cooperative endeavor agreement (CEA) with a regional public rural 
hospital (Grantor), whereby the Grantor awards an intergovernmental transfer (IGT) grant to be 
used solely to provide adequate and essential medically necessary and available health care 
services to the District's service population subject to the availability of such grant funds. The 
aggregate IGT grant income was approximately $2,827,000 and $2,135,000, for the years ended 
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, of which S2,327,000 and $1,720,000, respectively, is 
included in net patient service revenue and the residual amount is included in other operating 
revenue. 

Note 3: Deposits 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government's deposits may not 
be returned to it. The District's deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the 
provisions of state law. 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository insurance or other 
qualified investments. At September 30, the District's bank balances were as follows: 

 

2023 2022 

Insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 1,251,000 '7,045,542 
Uninsured and uncollateralized 198,444 79,593 

Collateralized by securities held by the pledging 

financial institution's Tnist Departrnent 

in the District's narne 42,163,319 33,516,197 

Total depository balance $ 43,612,763 $ 35,641,332 

Summary of Carrying Values 

The carrying values of deposits shown above are included in the statements of net position as 
follows: 

Carrying value 
2023 2022 

  

Deposits $ 43,309,501 $ 35,684,117 

Included in the following,' staternents of 
net position captions 

  

Cash $ 8,592,491 30,250,658 
Short-term investments - certificates of deposit 33,775,731 4,519,778 

Board designated - short-tenn investments 941,279 913,681 

 

$ 43,309,501 $ 35,684,117 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Note 4: Patient Accounts Receivable 

The District grants credit without collateral to its patients, many of whom are area residents and are 
insured under third-party payer agreements. Patient accounts receivable at September 30 consisted 
of: 

 

2023 2022 

Medicare $ 1,907,967 S 1,729,169 
Medicaid 753,281 715,087 
Other third-party payers 724,936 657,181 
Patients 2,428,744 2,441,132 

 

5,814,928 5,542,569 
Less allowance for uncollectible accounts 1,952,379 2,012,054 

 

$ 3,862,549 $ 3,530,515 

Note 5: Capital Assets 

Capital assets activity for the years ended September 30 was: 

    

2023 

 

Beginning 
Balance Additions 

 

Transfers/ 
Disposals Adjustments 

Ending 
Balance 

Land $ 1,939,830 S 235,441 S - $ $ 2,175,271 

Land improvements 1 41,710 

  

- - 241,720 

Buiklings and improvements 13.050.083 34,958 

  

13,085,041 

Equipment 8,169,726 327,531 

 

- - 8,497,257 

Vehicles 797,289 87.170 

 

- - 884.459 

Fumiture 76,557 - 

  

76,557 

Construction in 1m-ogress 14,177 636,058 

  

650,235 

 

24.289.382 1,321,158 

  

25,610,540 

Less accuinulaied depreciation 

     

Land improvements 202,905 88,631 

  

291,536 

Buildings and Unprovemenis 6,325,460 473.396 

 

- - 6.798.856 
Equipment 6,862,273 325,767 

 

- - 7,188,040 

Vehicles 753.936 47,089 

  

801.025 
Furniture 169.558 26,701 

  

196,259 

 

14,314,132 961,584 

  

15,275,716 

Capital assets, net $ 9,975,250 $ 359,574 $ 

 

$ 10,334,824 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

    

2022 

  

Beginning 
Balance Additions 

 

Disposals 
Transfers/ 

Adjustments 
Ending 
Balance 

Land 1.837.427 $ 102.403 $ - $ 1,939,830 
Land improvements 241,720 - 

 

- - 241,720 
Buiklings and improvements 12,868,603 181,480 

   

13,050,083 
Equipment 8,002,612 313,105 

 

(145,991) 

 

8,169,726 
Vehicles 769,811 83,095 

 

(55,617) - 797, 289 
Fumiture 76,557 - 

 

- 

 

76,557 
Construction in progress 6,287 7.890 

   

14.177 

 

23,803,017 687,973 

 

(201,608) 

 

24,289,382 

Less accumulated depreciation 

      

Land improvements 163,789 39,116 

   

202,905 
Buildings and improvements 5,849,503 475,957 

 

- - 6,325,460 
Equipment 6.622.261 378,261 

 

(138,249) 

 

6,862,273 
Vehicles 773,985 35,568 

 

(55,617) - 753,936 
Furniture 169,558 - 

 

- - 169,558 

 

13,579,096 928,902 

 

(193,866) 

 

14,314,132 

Capital assets, net $ 10,223,921 $ (240,929) 

 

(7,742) $ 9,975,250 

Note 6: Medical Malpractice Claims 

The District participates in the Louisiana Patients' Compensation Fund established by the State of 
Louisiana to provide medical professional liability coverage to health care providers. The fund 
provides 5400,000 in coverage per occurrence above the first S100,000 per occunence. The first 
$100,000 is covered by the Louisiana Hospital Association Malpractice and General Liability 
Tnist. There is not a limitation placed on the number of occurrences covered. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require a health care 
provider to accrue the expense of its share of malpractice claim costs, if any, for any reported and 
unreported incidents of potential improper professional service occurring during the year by 
estimating the probable ultimate costs of the incidents. Based upon the District's claims 
experience, no such accnial has been made. It is reasonably possible that this estimate could 
change materially in the near term. 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

Note 7: Employee Health Claims 

Substantially all of the District's ernployees and their dependents are eligible to participate in the 
District's employee health insurance plan. The District is self-insured for health claims of 
participating employees and dependents up to an annual aggregate amount of S45,000. Commercial 
stop-loss insurance coverage is purchased for clairns in excess of the aggregate annual arnount. A 
provision is accrued for self-insured employee health claims, including both claims reported and 
claims incurred but not yet reported. The accnial is estimated based on consideration of prior 
claims' experience, recently settled claims, frequency of claims and other economic and social 
factors. It is reasonably possible that the District's estimate will change by a material amount in the 
near term. The accrual and fiscal year activity (current year expenses and claim payments made) 
for employee health claims is not material in 2023 and 2022. 

Note 8: Pension Plan 

In January 1993, the District elected to withdraw from the Social Security System. In place of the 
Social Security System, the District has a defined contribution 401(a) pension plan that includes a 
414H contribution plan with an employer match and a 457 elective deferral compensation plan. 
Nationwide Trust Cornpany is the plan administrator. Benefit provisions are contained in the plan 
document and were established and can be amended by action of the District's governing body. 

Employees are eligible to participate upon date of employment and are immediately vested in the 
employer's matching contribution. Contributions to the plans by the District are determined by the 
Board at a minimum of 6.2% of the participant's cornpensation. Contribution rates for plan 
members and the District, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, was 6.1% and 5.9% for 
2023 and 2022, respectively. Contributions rnade by plan members were approximately $1,054,000 
and $927,000 during 2023 and 2022, respectively. Employer contributions rnade by the District 
were approximately $1,054,000 and $924,000 during 2023 and 2022, respectively. Forfeitures were 
not material in 2023 and 2022. 

Note 9: Contingencies 

Litigation 

In the normal course of business, the District is, from time to time, subject to allegations that may 
or do result in litigation. Some of these allegations are in areas not covered by the District's self-
insurance program (discussed elsewhere in these notes) or by cornrnercial insurance: for example, 
allegations regarding employment practices or perfonnance of contracts. The District evaluates 
such allegations by conducting investigations to determine the validity of each potential claim. 
Based upon the advice of leal counsel, management records an estimate of the amount of ultimate 
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A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Notes to Financial Statements 

September 30, 2023 and 2022 

expected loss, if any, for each. Events could occur that would cause the estimate of ultimate loss to 
differ materially in the near term. 

Workers' Compensation 

The District participates in the Louisiana Hospital Association's Self-Insurance Workmen's 
Compensation Tnist Fund (the Fund). Should the Fund's assets not be adequate to cover claims 
made against it, the District may be assessed its pro rata share of the resulting deficit. [t is not 
possible to estimate the amount of assessments, if any, under this program. The portion of the Fund 
that is refundable to the District is included in other assets. 

Note 10: COVID-19 Pandemic and CARES Act Funding 

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization designated the SARS-CoV-2 virus and the 
incidence of COVID-19 (COVID-19) as a global pandemic. Patient volumes and the related 
revenues were significantly affected by COVID-19 as various policies were implemented by 
federal, state, and local goveniments in response to the pandemic that led many people to remain at 
home and forced the closure of or limitations on certain businesses, as well as suspended elective 
procedures by health care facilities. 

As discussed below, the District received general and targeted Provider Relief Fund distributions as 
provided for under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and £cojronlic• Security (CARES) Act. 

Provider Relief Fund 

From the commencement of the pandemic through September 30, 2023, the District received 
approximately $5,968,000 of distributions from the CARES Act Provider Relief Fund (the Provider 
Relief Fund), of which approximately SO and $1,225,000 were received during the years ended 
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. These distributions from the Provider Relief Fund are 
not subject to repayment, provided the District is able to attest to and comply with the terms and 
conditions of the fiinding, including demonstrating that the distributions received have been used 
for qualifying expenses or lost revenue attributable to COVID-19, as defined by the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services. 

The District is accounting for such payments as conditional contributions. Payments are recognized 
as non-operating revenue once the applicable terms and conditions required to retain the funds have 
been met. Based on an analysis of the compliance and reporting requirements of the Provider 
Relief Fund and the effect of the pandemic on the District's operating revenues and expenses, the 
District recognized approximately $0 and S1,225,000, related to the Provider Relief Fund in 2023 
and 2022, respectively, and these payments are recorded as noncapital grants and gifts in the 
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. 
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The terms and conditions governing the Provider Relief Funds are complex and subject to 
interpretation and change. If the District is unable to attest to or comply with current or future 
terms and conditions, the District's ability to retain some or all of the distributions received may be 
affected. Provider Relief Fund payments are subject to government oversight, including potential 
audits. 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head or 

Chief Executive Officer 

September 30, 2023 

Agency Head Name: Michael W. Carroll, CEO 

 

Purpose Amount 

Salary S 262,093 

Benefits - insurance 1,236 
Benefits - retirement 16,250 

Cell phone 695 

Registration fees 445 

Conference travel 1,400 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Combining Statement of Net Position 

September 30, 2023 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Hospital and 
Clinics 

Delhi Community 
Health Center Eliminations Combined 

    

Cash $ 4,530,377 $ 4,062,114 $ - $ 8,592,491 
Short-terrn investinents - certificates of deposit 32,753,242 1,022,489 - 33,775,731 
Board designated - short-tenn investments 941,279 

 

- 941,279 
Patient accounts receivable, net 2,410,513 1,452,1)36 - 3,862,549 
Due frorn affiliate 276,742 - (276,742) - 
Estimated amounts due from third-party payers 1,115,609 47,944 - 1,163,553 
Grant and other receivables 81(1,467 225,731 (265) 1,035,933 
Supplies 842,11)8 153,075 - 995,183 
Prepaid expenses and other 369,857 66,064 - 435,921 

Total current assets 44,050,194 7,1)29,453 (277,007) 50,802,641) 

Capital Assets, Net 4,718,481) 5,616,344 

 

10,334,824 

Other Assets 236,088 

  

236,088 

Total assets $ 49,004,762 12,645,797 S (277,007) $ 61,373,552 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Combining Statement of Net Position (Continued) 

September 30, 2023 

Liabilities and Net Position 
Current Liabilities 

Hospital and 
Clinics 

Delhi Community 
Health Center Eliminations Combined 

    

Accounts payable 1,146,947 $ 81,700 $ $ 1,228,647 
Accrued expenses 968,323 294,486 

 

1,262,809 
Revenue received in advance 58,008 

  

58,008 
Estirnated self-insured health insurance costs 128,030 

  

128,03(1 
Due to affiliate 

 

277,007 (277,007) 

 

Total current liabilities 2,301,308 653,193 (277,007) 2,677,494 

Net Position 

    

Net investment in capital assets 4,219,277 5,616,344 

 

9,835,621 

Unrestricted 42,484,177 6,376,260 

 

48,860,437 

Total net position 46,703,454 11,992,6(14 

 

58,696,058 

Total I abilities and net position 49,004,762 $ 12,645,797 $ (277,007) 61,373,552 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Year Ended September 30, 2022 

Operating Revenues 

Hospital and 
Clinics 

Delhi Community 
Health Center 

 

Eliminations Combined 

     

Net patient service evenue $ 26,444,610 $ 4,863,798 $ 

 

$ 31,308,408 
Grant revenue - 3,121,409 

  

3.121,409 
Other 1,732,736 1.411,845 

 

(180.000) 2.964,581 

Total operatinu revenues 28,177,346 9,397,052 

 

(180,000) 37,394,398 

Operating Expenses 

     

Salaries and wages 12,531,925 4,612,768 

 

- 17,144,693 
Employee benefits 2,950,838 947,820 

 

- 3.898,658 
Purchased seiyices and professional kes 4,148,348 433,553 

 

- 4,581,901 
Supplies and other 5,360,530 1,883,244 

 

(180,000) 7,063,774 
Depreciation and ainortization 568,782 392,802 

 

- 961,584 

Total operatim expenses 25,560,423 8,270,187 

 

(180,000) 33.650,610 

Operating Income 2,616,923 1,126,865 

  

3,743,788 

Nonoperating Reveuues 

     

Property taxes 846,580 - 

 

- 846,580 
Investment income 1,177,119 103,879 

  

1,280,998 
Noneapital urants and gifts 1.165.771 175.819 

  

1.341.590 

Total nonoperatinu revenues 3,189,470 279,698 

 

- 3,469,168 

Income Before Capital Grants 5,806,393 1.406,563 

  

7.212,956 

Capital Grants 389,145 

   

389,145 

lucrease iu Net Positiou 6,195,538 1,406,561 

  

7,602,101 

Net Position, Begiuniug of Year 40,507,916 10.586,041 

  

51.093,957 

Net Position, End of Year 5 46.703,454 11,992,604 

 

- $ 58,696,058 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 

with Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Board of Commissioners 
Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Delhi, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), the financial 
statements of Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 
(the District), a component unit of Richland Parish Police Jury, which comprise the District's statement of 
net position as of September 30, 2023, and the related statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in 
net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated February 26, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
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Board of Commissioners 
Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 

d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

FOP/ I51LLP 
Dallas, Texas 
February 26, 2024 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Federal Grantor/Pass 
Through 

Grantor/Program or 
Cluster Title 

Federal 
Assistance 

Listing 
Number (ALN) 

Pass-Through 
Entity 

Identifying 
Number 

Passed 
Through to 

Subrecipients 
Total Federal 
Expenditures 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
Pass-Through State of Louisiana - Department of Health 

    

Family Planning Services 93.217 2000(1543033 - s 64.578 

Health Center Program Cluster 

    

Grants for New and Expanded Services under the Health 
Center Progam 93.527 

  

1,845,576 
COVID-I9 Grants for New and Expanded Services under the 

    

Health Center Program 93.527 

  

67,193 
Total 93.527 

   

1,915,769 
Health Center Program (Community Health Centers, 

    

(Community Health Centers, Miiyant Health Centers, 

    

Health Care for the Homeless. and Public Housing Primary 
Care) 93.224 

  

322,576 
COVID-19 American Rescue Plan Act Fundma for Health 

    

Center Progam 93.224 

  

740.755 
Total 93 224 

   

1,063,331 

Total Health Center Program Cluster 

   

2 979 100 

COVID-19 Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural 
Distribution 93.498 

  

1,224,853 

Rural Health Care Services Outreach, Rural 

    

Health Network Development and Small 

    

Health Care Provider Quality Improvement 
Program 93.912 

  

1,990,684 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

   

5,359,215 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 

    

Community Facihties Loans and Grants Cluster 

    

Community Facilities Loans and Grants 10.766 

  

389,145 

Total Community Facilities Loans and Grants Cluster 

   

389,145 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

  

S $ 5.748,360 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Schedule. 1 



Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richiand Parish Police Jury 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Note 1: Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal 
award activity of Hospital Service District No. IA of the Parish of Richland d.b.a. Ricliland Parish 
Hospital (the District) under programs of the federal government for the year ended September 30, 
2023. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code qf Federal Re,gulaiions Part 200, Uniform Administraiive Requiremems, Cosi Principles, 
and Audii Requirements Ibr Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents 
only a selected portion of the operations of the District, it is not intended to and does not present the 
financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the District. 

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accnial basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Unifoim Guidance, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reitnbursement. Negative 
amounts, if any, shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of 
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. 

Note 3: Indirect Cost Rate 

The District has elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform 
Guidance. 

Note 4: Federal Loan Programs 

The District did not have any loan prograrns during the year ended September 30, 2023. 

Note 5: Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) (Unaudited) 

For the year ended September 30, 2023, the District received SO in federally donated personal 
protective equipment in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Board of Commissioners 
Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 

d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 
A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Delhi, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), the financial 
statements of Hospital Service District No. 1 A of the Parish of Richland d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital (the 
District), a Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury, which comprise the District's balance sheet as 
of September 30, 2023, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, 
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated February 26, 2024. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
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Board of Commissioners 
Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 

d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 
A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

FOKVIS,LL-P 

Dallas, Texas 
February 26, 2024 
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Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program, Report on Internal Control 
Over Compliance, and Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Required by the Uniform Guidance 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Board of Commissioners 
Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 

d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 
A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Delhi, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program 

Opinion on the Major Federal Program 

We have audited Hospital Service District No. 'IA of the Parish of Richland d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital's 
(the District), a Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury, compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on the District's major federal program for the year ended September 30, 2023. The District's 
major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended 
September 30, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion on the Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing 
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in 
the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance" section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for the major 
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District's compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the District's 
federal programs. 

   PRAXITY® 
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Board of Commissioners 
Hospital Service District No. 1 A of the Parish of Richland 

d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 
A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion 
on the District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is 
not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, 
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is 
considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District's 
compliance with the requirements of the major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on 
a test basis, evidence regarding the District's compliance with the compliance requirements 
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the District's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 
control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Board of Commissioners 
Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 

d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 
A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the "Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance" section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not 
identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of the District, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, 
and have issued our report thereon dated February 26, 2024, which contained an unmodified opinion on 
those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial 
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

FOKVI5,LL-P 

Dallas, Texas 
February 26, 2024 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Section l — Summary of Auditors Results 

Financial Statements 

The type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements audited were prepared in 
accordance with GAAP: 

Unmodified  Qualified Adverse Disclaimer 

2. Internal control over financial reporting: 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? E Yes None reported 

Material weakness(es) identified? E Yes No 

3. Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? ❑ Yes El No 

Federal Awards 

4. Internal control over the major federal awards program: 

  

5. 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? E Yes 

Material weakness(es) identified? I-1  Yes 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for the major federal prograrn: 

None reported 

K No 

6. 

Unmodified   Qualified   Adverse 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported by 

 Disclaimer 

 

7. 

2 CFR 200.516(a)? 

Identification of the major federal program: 

EI Yes No 

Cluster/Program 

Assistance 
Listing 
Number   

COVID-19 Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue Plan (ARP) Rural 
Distribution 93.498 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 

Year Ended September 30, 2023 

8. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000. 

9. Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? Yes El No 

9 



Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 

Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Section II — Financial Statement Findings 

Reference 
Number Finding 

No matters are reportable.  

Section III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

Reference 
Number Finding 

No matters are reportable. 
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Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Reference 
Number Summary of Finding Status 

No matters are reportable. 
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Required Communications Regarding Our Audit Strategy & 
Approach (AU-C 260) 
The following matters are required communications we must make to you, including these responsibilities: 

Overview & Responsibilities 

•
Matter Discussion 

Scope of Our 
Audit 

This report covers audit results related to your financial statements and supplementary 
information: 

• As of and for the year ended September 30, 2023 

• Conducted in accordance with our contract dated July 14, 2023 

FORVIS is responsible for forming and expressing an opinion about whether the financial 
statements that have been prepared by management, with the oversight of those charged with 
governance, are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP). 

An audit performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS) and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States (GAGAS) is designed to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, 
assurance about the financial statements. The scope of our audit tests was established in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole and did not include a detailed audit of all 
transactions. 

Our 
Responsibilities 

Audit Scope & 
Inherent 
Limitations to 
Reasonable 
Assurance 

FORV/S 
FORM ia a trademark of FORVIS. LLP, regiatration of which ia pending with the 1J.S. Patent and Trademark Office 

Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a. Richland Parish Hospital February 26, 2024 
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Matter Discussion 

Extent of Our 
Communication 

In addition to areas of interest and noting prior communications made during other phases of 
the engagement, this report includes communications required in accordance with GAAS that 
are relevant to the responsibilities of those charged with governance in overseeing the financial 
reporting process, including audit approach, results, and internal control. The standards do not 
require the auditor to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to be 
communicated with those charged with governance. 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm, have complied with all 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. 

Our audit does not relieve management or those charged with governance of your 
responsibilities. Your responsibilities and ours are further referenced in our contract. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the following and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties: 

• The Board of Commissioners and Management 

• Others within the Entity 

Independence 

Your 
Responsibilities 

Distribution 
Restriction 

FORV/S 
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Government Auditing Standards 

Matter Discussion 
 

Additional We also provided reports as of September 30, 2023, on the following as required by GAGAS: 
GAGAS • Internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters based on 
Reporting an audit of the financial statements performed in accordance with GAGAS 

Reporting Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting and our tests of compliance were 
Limitations not designed with an objective of forming an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control or 

on compliance, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Uniform Guidance Overview & Responsibilities 

Matter I Discussion 
 

Scope of Our We also provided reports as of September 30, 2023, on the following as required by U.S. Office 
Audit of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform Guidance: 

• Opinion on compliance for the major federal award program 

• Report on internal control over compliance 

• Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

FORV/S 
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Matter Discussion 
 

Audit Scope & 
Inherent 
Limitations to 
Reasonable 
Assurance 

A compliance audit performed in accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance is designed to obtain 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on a major federal award program occurred. 

FORV/S 
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Qualitative Aspects of Significant Accounting Policies & Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 of the audited financial statements. 

With respect to new accounting standards adopted during the year, we call to your attention the following topics 
detailed in the following pages: 

• No matters are reportable 

Unusual Policies or Methods 

With respect to significant unusual accounting policies or accounting methods used for significant unusual transactions 
(significant transactions outside the normal course of business or that otherwise appear to be unusual due to their 
timing, size, or nature), we noted the following: 

• No matters are reportable 

Alternative Accounting Treatments 

We had discussions with management regarding alternative accounting treatments within GAAP for policies and 
practices for material items, including recognition, measurement, and disclosure considerations related to the 
accounting for specific transactions as well as general accounting policies, as follows: 

• No matters are reportable 

FORV/S 
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Management Judgments & Accounting Estimates 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of financial statement preparation by management, based on its judgments. 
Significant areas of such estimates for which we are prepared to discuss management's estimation process and our 
procedures for testing the reasonableness of those estimates include: 

• Allowance for uncollectible accounts and contractual adjustments 

Financial Statement Disclosures 
The following areas involve particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures for which we are prepared to discuss 
the issues involved and related judgments made in formulating those disclosures: 

• Net patient service revenue 

Our Judgment About the Quality of the Entity's Accounting Principles 

During the course of the audit, we made the following observations regarding the Entity's application of accounting 
principles: 

• No matters are reportable 

FORV/S 
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Adjustments Identified by Audit 

During the course of any audit, an auditor may propose adjustments to financial statement amounts. Management 
evaluates our proposals and records those adjustments that, in its judgment, are required to prevent the financial 
statements from being materially misstated. 

A misstatement is a difference between the amount, classification, presentation, or disclosure of a reported financial 
statement item and that which is required for the item to be presented fairly in accordance with the applicable financial 
reporting framework. 

Proposed & Recorded Adjustments 

Auditor-proposed and management-recorded entries include the following: 

• No matters are reportable 

Uncorrected Misstatements 

No uncorrected misstatements to report. 

FORV/S 
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Other Material Communications 
Listed below are other material communications between management and us related to the audit: 

• Management representation letter (see Attachments) 

• We orally communicated to management other deficiencies in internal control identified during our audit that are 
not considered material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. 
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Attachments 

Management Representation Letter 
As a material communication with management, included herein is a copy of the representation letter provided by 
management at the conclusion of our engagement. 
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Richland Parish Hospital - Delhi 
-107 Cincinnati Street Delhi, LA 71232 

Phone (318) 878-5171; Fax (318)878-6427 

 

Representation of 
Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a Richland Parish Hospital and Richland Health Services, Inc. 
407 Cincinnati Street 
Delhi, LA 73232 

Provided to: 
FORVIS, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
14241 Dallas Parkway, Suite 1100 
Dallas Texas 75254-2961 

The undersigned ("We") are providing this letter in connection with FORVIS' audits of our financial 
statements as of and for the years] ended September 30, 2023 and 2022. 

We are also providing this letter in connection with: 

• Your audit of our compliance with requirements applicable to our major federal awards program as 
of and for the year ended September 30, 2023. 

Our representations are current and effective as of the date of FORVIS' report: February 26, 2024. 

Our engagement with FORVIS is based on our contract for services dated: July 14, 2023. 

Our Responsibility & Consideration of Material Matters 

We confirm that we are responsible for the fair presentation of the financial statements subject to FORVIS' 
report in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

We are also responsible for adopting sound accounting policies; establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting, operations, and compliance; and preventing and detecting fraud. 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are 
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting 
information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable 
person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An 
omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be considered material as a result of 
qualitative factors. 

Confirmation of Matters Specific to the Subject Matter of FORVIS' Report 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following: 

Broad Matters 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of our contract for the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of: 



Hospital Service District No.1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a Richland Parish Hospital and Richland Health Services, inc. 

Page 2 
a. Internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

b. Internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

3. We have provided you with: 

a. Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, such as financial records and related data, 
documentation, and other matters. 

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary 
to obtain audit evidence. 

d. All minutes of Commissioners meetings held through the date of this letter or summaries 
of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared. All unsigned 
copies of minutes provided to you are copies of our original minutes approved by the board, 
if applicable, and maintained as part of our records. 

e. All significant contracts and grants. 

4. We have responded fully and truthfully to all your inquiries. 

Government Auditing Standards 

5. We acknowledge that we are responsible for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and 
provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 

6. We have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements that have a direct and material effect on the determination of amounts in our financial 
statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives. 

7. We have identified and disclosed to you any violations or possible violations of laws, regulations, 
and provisions of contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt 
covenants whose effects should be considered for recognition and/or disclosure in the financial 
statements or for your reporting on noncompliance. 

8. We have taken or will take timely and appropriate steps to remedy any fraud, abuse, illegal acts, 
or violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements that you or other auditors report 

9. We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations. 

10. We have identified to you any previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance 
audits, or other studies related to the objectives of your audit and the corrective actions taken to 
address any significant findings and recommendations made in such audits, attestation 
engagements, or other studies. 
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Federal Awards Programs (Uniform Guidance) 

11. We have identified in the schedule of expenditures of federal awards all assistance provided (either 
directly or passed through other entities) by federal agencies in the form of grants, contracts, loans, 
loan guarantees, property cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, commodities, insurance, 
direct appropriations, or in any other form. 

12. We have disclosed to you all contracts or other agreements with service organizations, and we 
have disclosed to you all communications from the service organizations relating to noncompliance 
at the service organizations. 

13. We have reconciled the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) to the financial 
statements. 

14. Federal awards-related revenues and expenditures are fairly presented both in form and content, 
in accordance with the applicable criteria in the entity's financial statements. 

15. We have evaluated all recipient organizations that received federal funding from the District and 
concluded that the District does not have any subrecipients. 

16. We have identified the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement regarding activities allowed or 
unallowed; allowable costs/cost principles; cash management; eligibility; equipment and real 
property management; matching, level of effort, earmarking; period of performance of federal funds; 
procurement and suspension and debarment; program income; reporting subrecipient monitoring; 
and special tests and provisions that are applicable to each of our federal awards programs. We 
have identified to you our interpretation of any applicable compliance requirements subject to 
varying interpretations. 

17. We are responsible for complying, and have complied, with the requirements of Uniform Guidance. 

18. We are responsible to understand and comply with the requirements of federal statutes, 
regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards related to each of our federal awards 
programs and have disclosed to you any and all instances of noncompliance with those 
requirements occurring during the period of your audit or subsequent thereto to the date of this 
letter of which we are aware. Except for any instances of noncompliance, we have disclosed to 
you, we believe the entity has complied with all applicable compliance requirements. 

19. We are responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controls over 
compliance that provide reasonable assurance we have administered each of our federal awards 
programs in compliance with federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions of the 
federal awards. 

20. We have made available to you all federal awards (including amendments, if any) and any other 
correspondence or documentation relevant to each of our federal awards programs and to our 
compliance with applicable requirements of those programs. 

21. The information presented in federal awards program financial reports and claims for advances 
and reimbursements is supported by the books and records from which our financial statements 
have been prepared. 

22. The costs charged to federal awards are in accordance with applicable cost principles. 



Hospital Service District No.1A of the Parish of Richland 
d.b.a Richland Parish Hospital and Richland Health Services, Inc. 

Page 4 
23. The reports provided to you related to federal awards programs are true copies of reports submitted 

or electronically transmitted to the federal awarding agency, the applicable payment system, or 
pass-through entity in the case of a subrecipient. 

24. Amounts claimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) regarding cost principles. 

25. We have disclosed to you any communications from federal awarding agencies and pass-through 
entities concerning possible noncompliance with the applicable compliance requirements for each 
of our federal awards programs, including any communications received from the end of the period 
of your audit through the date of this letter. 

26. We have identified to you any previous compliance audits, attestation engagements, and internal 
or external monitoring related to the objectives of your compliance audit, including findings received 
and corrective actions taken to address any significant findings and recommendations made in 
such audits, attestation engagements, or other monitoring. 

27. The reporting package does not contain any protected personally identifiable information. 

28. No changes have been made in internal control over compliance or other factors that might 
significantly affect internal control, including any corrective action we have taken regarding 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over compliance subsequent to 
the period covered by the auditor's report. 

Misappropriation, Misstatements, & Fraud 

29. We have informed you of all current risks of a material amount that are not adequately prevented 
or detected by our procedures with respect to: 

a. Misappropriation of assets. 

b. Misrepresented or misstated assets, liabilities and net position. 

30. We have no knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving: 

a. Management or employees who have significant roles in internal control over financial 
reporting, or 

b. Others when the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

31. We understand that the term "fraud" includes misstatements arising from fraudulent financial 
reporting and misstatements arising from misappropriation of assets. Misstatements arising from 
fraudulent financial reporting are intentional misstatements, or omissions of amounts or disclosures 
in financial statements to deceive financial statement users. Misstatements arising from 
misappropriation of assets involve the theft of an entity's assets where the effect of the theft causes 
the financial statements not to be presented in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

32. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity received 
in communications from employees, former employees, customers citizens, suppliers, or others. 
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33. We have assessed the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of 

fraud and disclosed to you any such risk identified. 

Related Parties 

34. We have disclosed to you the identity of all of the entity's related parties and all the related-party 
relationships of which we are aware. The entity has not entered into any new agreements with a 
related party or modified terms related to an existing related-party transaction during the year under 
audit, or as of the date of this letter. Further, we do not have any existing or ongoing agreements 
with related parties that are still in effect as of the date of this letter.We understand that the term 
related party refers to: 

• Affiliates. 

• Entities for which investments are accounted for by the equity method. 

• Management and members of their immediate families. 

• Any other party with which the entity may deal if one party can significantly influence the 
management or operating policies of the other to an extent that one of the transacting 
parties might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. 

Another party is also a related party if it can significantly influence the management or operating 
policies of the transacting parties or if it has an ownership interest in one of the transacting parties 
and can significantly influence the other to an extent that one or more of the transacting parties 
might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. 

The term affiliate refers to a party that directly or indirectly controls, or is controlled by, or is under 
common control with, the entity. 

Litigation, Laws, Rulings, & Regulations 

35. We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation or claims whose effects should be 
considered when preparing the financial statements. We have not sought or received attorney's 
services related to pending or threatened litigation or claims during or subsequent to the audit 
period. Also, we are not aware of any litigation or claims, pending or threatened, for which legal 
counsel should be sought. 

36. We have no knowledge of communications, other than those specifically disclosed, from regulatory 
agencies, governmental representatives, employees, or others concerning investigations or 
allegations of noncompliance with laws and regulations, deficiencies in financial reporting practices, 
or other matters that could have a material adverse effect on the financial statements. 

37. We have disclosed to you all known instances of violations or noncompliance or possible violations 
or suspected noncompliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when 
preparing financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency. 

38. We have no reason to believe the entity owes any penalties or payments under the Employer 
Shared Responsibility Provisions of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act nor have we 
received any correspondence from the IRS or other agencies indicating such payments may be 
due. 
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39. We have not been designated as a potentially responsible party (PRP or equivalent status) by the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) or other cognizant regulatory agency with authority to 
enforce environmental laws and regulations. 

Nonattest Services 

40. You have provided nonattest services, including the following, during the period of this 
engagement: 

• Completing the auditee portion of the Form SF-SAC (Data Collection Form) through the 
Federal Audit Clearinghouse. 

• Preparation of the Medicare and Medicaid cost reports 

• Preparing a draft of the financial statements and related notes. 

• Assistance with the adoption of GASB 96, Subscription-Based lnformation Technology 
Arrangements 

41. With respect to these services: 

a. We have designated a qualified management-level individual to be responsible and 
accountable for overseeing the nonattest services. 

b. We have established and monitored the performance of the nonattest services to ensure 
they meet our objectives. 

c. We have made any and all decisions involving management functions with respect to the 
nonattest services and accept full responsibility for such decisions. 

d. We have evaluated the adequacy of the services performed and any findings that resulted. 

e. Established and maintained internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities. 

f. When we receive final deliverables from you, we will store those deliverables in information 
systems controlled by us. We have taken responsibility for maintaining internal control over 
these deliverables. 

Financial Statements & Reports 

42. We have reviewed and approved a draft of the financial statements and related notes referred to 
above, which you prepared in connection with your audit of our financial statements. We 
acknowledge that we are responsible for the fair presentation of the financial statements and 
related notes. 

43. With regard to supplementary information: 

a. We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the supplementary information 
in accordance with the applicable criteria. 

b. We believe the supplementary information is fairly presented, both in form and content, in 
accordance with the applicable criteria. 
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c. The methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information are 
unchanged from those used in the prior period, and in accordance with Uniform Guidance, 
where applicable, and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or 
interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the supplementary 
information. 

d. We believe the significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement 
and/or presentation of the supplementary information are reasonable and appropriate. 

e. We understand that consolidating supplementary information is for purposes of additional 
analysis of the financial statements rather than to present the financial position and results 
of operations of each of the individual companies. 

f. lf the supplementary information is not presented with the audited financial statements, we 
will make the audited financial statements readily available to intended users of the 
supplementary information no later than the date such information and the related auditors 
report are issued. 

Transactions, Records, & Adjustments 

44. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 
statements. 

45. We have everything we need to keep our books and records. 

46. We have disclosed any significant unusual transactions the entity has entered into during the 
period, including the nature, terms, and business purpose of those transactions. 

47. There are no uncorrected misstatements or omitted disclosures. 

Healthcare Matters 

48. We have provided you with all peer review organizations, administrative contractor, and third-party 
payer reports and information. 

49. We have informed you of all pending or completed investigations by regulatory authorities of which 
we are aware. There are no known circumstances that could jeopardize the entity's participation in 
the Medicare or other governmental healthcare programs. 

50. Adequate provisions and allowances have been accrued for any material losses from 
Medicare/Medicaid and other third-party payer contractual, audit, or other adjustments. 

51. Billings to third-party payers comply in all material respects with applicable coding guidelines, laws, 
and regulations. Billings reflect only charges for goods and services that were medically necessary; 
properly approved by regulatory bodies, if required; and properly rendered. 

52. With regard to cost reports filed with Medicare, Medicaid or other third parties: 

a. All required reports have been properly filed. 

b. Management is responsible for the accuracy and propriety of those reports. 
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c. All costs reflected on such reports are appropriate and allowable under applicable 
reimbursement rules and regulations and are patient-related and properly allocated to 
applicable payers. 

d. The reimbursement methodologies and principles employed are in accordance with 
applicable rules and regulations. 

e. All items required to be disclosed, including disputed costs that are being claimed to 
establish a basis for a subsequent appeal, have been fully disclosed in the cost report. 

f. Recorded third-party settlements include differences between filed (and to be filed) cost 
reports and calculated settlements, which are necessary based upon historical experience 
or new or ambiguous regulations that may be subject to differing interpretations. While 
management believes the entity is entitled to all the amounts claimed on the cost reports, 
management also believes the amounts of these differences are appropriate. 

53. With respect to the entity's possible exposure to past or future workers' compensation assertions: 

a. We have disclosed to you all incidents known to us that could possibly give rise to workers' 
compensation assertion. 

b. All known incidents have been reported to the appropriate workers' compensation insurer. 

c. There is no known lapse in coverage, including any lapse subsequent to the fiscal year-
end, that would result in any known incidents being uninsured. 

d. Management does not expect any claims to exceed workers' compensation insurance 
limits. 

54. There are no instances of noncompliance with laws or regulations with respect to Medicare and 
Medicaid antifraud and abuse statutes, in any jurisdiction, whose effects we believe should be 
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, 
other than those disclosed or accrued in the financial statements. This is including, but not limited 
to, the Anti-Kickback Statute of the Medicare and Medicaid Patient and Program Protection Act of 
1987, limitations on certain physician referrals (the Stark law), and the False Claims Act. 

55. With regards to the payments received from the Provider Relief Fund established by the CARES 
Act, we represent the following: 

a. To the extent revenue has been recognized, we believe we have met the eligibility 
requirements as outlined in the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services' (HHS) 
terms and conditions for the Provider Relief Fund. 

b. We believe the method we have utilized to recognize revenue associated with the Provider 
Relief Fund is consistent with acceptable methods outlined in HHS' terms and conditions 
and other guidance available as of September 30, 2023. 

c. Consistent with the terms and conditions established by H HS and other guidance available 
as of September 30, 2023, Provider Relief Fund payments were not used to reimburse 
expenses or losses that have been reimbursed or are obligated to be reimbursed by other 
sources, including payments from insurance and/or patients and amounts received from 
federal, state, or local governments. 
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d. We acknowledge that HHS may issue new guidance that could have a material impact on 
the amount of revenue recognized from the Provider Relief Fund as of September 30, 
2023. 

e. We understand that amounts recognized on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards may differ from amounts recognized on the financial statements. 

Governmental Accounting & Disclosure Matters 

56. With regard to deposit and investment activities: 

a. All deposit repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements, and investment transactions 
have been made in accordance with legal and contractual requirements. 

b. Disclosures of deposit and investment balances and risks in the financial statements are 
consistent with our understanding of the applicable laws regarding enforceability of any 
pledges of collateral. 

c. We understand that your audit does not represent an opinion regarding the enforceability 
of any collateral pledges. 

57. The financial statements include all component units, appropriately present majority equity interests 
in legally separate organizations and joint ventures with an equity interest, and properly disclose 
all other joint ventures and other related organizations. 

58. We have identified and evaluated all potential fiduciary activities. The financial statements include 
all fiduciary activities required by GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, as amended. 

59. Components of net position (net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted) are 
properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 

60. Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported, 
and, if applicable, depreciated or amortized. 

61. We have appropriately disclosed the entity's policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or 
unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted net position/fund balance is available and have determined that net position is properly 
recognized under the policy. 

62. We have identified and evaluated all potential tax abatements and we believe there are no material 
tax abatements. 

63. The entity's ability to continue as a going concern was evaluated and that appropriate disclosures 
are made in the financial statements as necessary under GASB requirements. 

64. The supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
consisting of management's discussion and analysis has been prepared and is measured and 
presented in conformity with the applicable GASB pronouncements and we acknowledge our 
responsibility for the information. The information contained therein is based on all facts, decisions, 
and conditions currently known to us and is measured using the same methods and assumptions 
as were used in the preparation of the financial statements. We believe the significant assumptions 
underlying the measurement and/or presentation of the information are reasonable and 
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appropriate. There has been no change from the preceding period in the methods of measurement 
and presentation. 

Accounting & Disclosure 

65. All transactions entered into by the entity are final. We are not aware of any unrecorded 
transactions, side agreements, or other arrangements (either written or oral) that are in place. 

66. Except as reflected in the financial statements, there are no: 

a. Plans or intentions that may materially affect carrying values or classifications of assets, 
liabilities, or net position. 

b. Material transactions omitted or improperly recorded in the financial records. 

c. Material unasserted claims or assessments that are probable of assertion or other gain/loss 
contingencies requiring accrual or disclosure, including those arising from environmental 
remediation obligations. 

d. Events occurring subsequent to the statement of net position date through the date of this 
letter, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, requiring 
adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements. 

e. Agreements to purchase assets previously sold. 

f. Arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balances or other 
arrangements involving restrictions on cash balances, lines of credit, or similar 
arrangements. 

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the entity is contingently liable. 

h. Known or anticipated asset retirement obligations. 

67. Except as disclosed in the financial statements, the entity has: 

a. Satisfactory title to all recorded assets, and those assets are not subject to any liens, 
pledges, or other encumbrances. 

b. Complied with all aspects of contractual and grant agreements, for which noncompliance 
would materially affect the financial statements. 

Revenue, Accounts Receivable, & Inventory 

68. Adequate provisions and allowances have been accrued for any material losses from: 

a. Uncollectible receivables. 

b. Excess or obsolete inventories. 

c. Sales commitments, including those unable to be fulfilled. 

d. Purchase commitments in excess of normal requirements or at prices in excess of 
prevailing market prices. 
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Estimates 

69. We have identified all accounting estimates that could be material to the financial statements, and 
we confirm the appropriateness of the methods and the consistency in their application, the 
accuracy and completeness of data, and the reasonableness of significant assumptions used by 
us in making the accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value reported in the 
financial statements. 

70. Significant estimates that may be subject to a material change in the near term have been properly 
disclosed in the financial statements. We understand that "near term" means the period within one 
year of the date of the financial statements. In addition, we have no knowledge of concentrations, 
which refer to volumes of business, revenues, available sources of supply, or markets, existing at 
the date of the financial statements that would make the entity vulnerable to the risk of severe 
impact in the near term that have not been properly disclosed in the financial statements. 

New Accounting Standards - GASB Statement 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements 

71. In connection with the adoption of GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information 
Technology Arrangements (GASB 96), we represent the that we have evaluated our operating 
expenses and information technology agreements and believe that the District does not have any 
material agreements that qualify for SBITA treatment under GASB 96. 

,W44, t, / 17=f771_,u  
Linda Goode, COO 

-1-NnS4\0J  
Mildred Greer, Interim CEO/CFO 
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Independent Accountant's Report on 
Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

Boards of Directors and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 
Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland 

d/b/a Richland Parish Hospital and Richland Health Services, Inc. 
A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Delhi, Louisiana 

We have performed the procedures enumerated in the attachment to this report on the control and 
compliance areas identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon 
Procedures as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023. The management of Hospital Service District 
No. 1A of the Parish of Richland d/b/a Richland Parish Hospital and Richland Health Services, Inc. (the 
District), a component unit of Richland Parish Police Jury, is responsible for the control and compliance 
areas identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures. 

The District has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the 
intended purpose of testing the control and compliance areas identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-
Upon Procedures as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023. This report may not be suitable for 
any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this 
report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for 
determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and the associated findings are described in the attachment to this report. 

We were engaged by the District to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our 
engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to, 
and did not, conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression 
of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those control and compliance areas identified in the LLA's 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had 
we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been 
reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

Under Louisiana Revised Statue 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

FWVIS,LLP 

Dallas, Texas 
January 24, 2024 

   I~ R~XITY® 
member of the Praxity GI.. Alliance FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registered with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.   



Hospital Service District No. 1A of the Parish of Richland d/b/a 
Richland Parish Hospital and Richland Health Services, inc. 

A Component Unit of Richland Parish Police Jury 
Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Written Policies and Procedures 

Procedures  

1. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe 
whether they address each of the following categories and subcategories if 
applicable to public funds and the entity's operations: 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the 
budget. 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are 
added to the vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase 
requisitions and purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the 
Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation required to be maintained for all bids 
and price quotes. 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

d) Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. 
Also, policies and procedures should include management's actions to 
determine the completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or 
agency fund additions (e.g., periodic confirmation with outside parties, 
reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic 
ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and 
approving time and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, 
and (3) approval process for employee(s) rate of pay or approval and 
maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) 
standard terms and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) 
monitoring process. 

g) Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) 
dollar thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and 
(4) required approvers. 

h) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards, if applicable), 
including (1) how cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) 
documentation requirements, (4) required approvers of statements, and (5) 
monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card 
purchases). 

2 
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i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 
(R.S.) 42:1111-1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, 
(3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that 
documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all employees and officials 
were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy. 

i) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing 
disclosure/EMMA reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and 
(4) debt service requirements. 

k) information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including 
(1) identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of 
backups in a separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic 
testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software 
on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software 
patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools 
needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

l) Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual 
reporting. 

Findings  

No exceptions were identified in the performance of the procedures listed above. 

Board or Finance Committee  

Procedures  

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as 
well as the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in 
effect during the fiscal period, and: 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, 
or on a frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, 
bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe 
whether the minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual 
comparisons on the general fund, quarterly budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on 
proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on all 
special revenue funds. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the 
unassigned fund balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative 
ending unassigned fund balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the 
minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included 
a formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the general 
fund. 
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d) Observe whether the board/finance committee received written updates of the 
progress of resolving audit finding(s), according to management's corrective 
action plan at each meeting until the findings are considered fully resolved. 

Findings 

The District did not have a negative unassigned fund balance in the prior year audit report. Accordingly, 
there are no items to report for step 2c. 

The District did not have audit findings in the prior year audit report. Accordingly, there are no items to 
report for step 2d. 

No exceptions were identified in the performance of the procedures listed above. 

Bank Reconciliations  

Procedures  

3. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management 
and management's representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to 
identify the entity's main operating account. Select the entity's main operating 
account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). 
Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and 
observe that: 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months 
of the related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically 
logged); 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board 
member who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed 
each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

c) Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items 
that have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing 
date, if applicable. 

Findings 

No exceptions were identified in the performance of the procedures listed above. 
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Collections (Excludinq Electronic Funds Transfers) 

Procedures  

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for 
cash/checks/money orders (cash) are prepared and managemenfs 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or 
all deposit sites if less than 5). 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one 
collection location for each deposit site (i.e., 5 collection locations for 5 deposit 
sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to employee job 
duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job 
duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly 
segregated at each collection location such that: 

a) Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash 
d rawers/registers. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for 
preparing/making bank deposits, unless another employee/official is 
responsible for reconciling collection documentation (e.g., pre- numbered 
receipts) to the deposit. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting 
collection entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another 
employee/official is responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other 
and to the deposit. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general 
ledger and/or subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund 
additions, are not responsible for collecting cash, unless another 
employee/official verifies the reconciliation. 

6. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering 
all employees who have access to cash. Observe the bond or insurance policy for 
theft was in force during the fiscal period. 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for 
procedure #3 under "Bank Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date 
chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates randomly selected and 
randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). Obtain 
supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related 
collection documentation to the deposit slip. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 
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d) Observe the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the 
collection location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from 
the collection location or the deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored 
securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

Findings 

No exceptions were identified in the performance of the procedures listed above. 

Non-Payroll Disbursements (Excluding Card Purchases, Travel Reimbursements, and Petty Cash 
Purchases)  

Procedures 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees 
involved with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written 
policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written 
policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties), and observe 
that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving 
a purchase, and placing an order/making the purchase. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to 
vendors. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from 
adding/modifying vendor files unless another employee is responsible for 
periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the 
payment or gives the signed checks to an employee to mail who is not 
responsible for processing payments. 

e) Only employees/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic 
disbursement (release) of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse 
(ACH), electronic funds transfer (EFT), wire transfer, or some other 
electronic means. 

10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll 
disbursement transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) 
and obtain management's representation that the population is complete. 
Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting 
documentation for each transaction, and: 
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a) Observe whether the disbursement matched the related original itemized 
invoice and supporting documentation indicates deliverables included on the 
invoice were received by the entity. 

b) Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., 
initial/date, electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as 
applicable. 

11. Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank 
Reconciliations procedure #3, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic 
disbursements (or all electronic disbursements if less than 5) and observe that each 
electronic disbursement was (a) approved by only those persons authorized to 
disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity's policy, and (b) approved by the 
required number of authorized signers per the entity's policy. 

Findings  

No exceptions were identified in the performance of the procedures listed above. 

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purchase Cards  

Procedures  

12. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, 
fuel cards, and purchase cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card 
numbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession of the cards. 
Obtain managements representation that the listing is complete. 

13. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if 
less than 5) that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly 
statement or combined statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select 
one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, and 

a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined 
statement and supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit 
card purchases, exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed 
and approved, in writing (or electronically approved), by someone other than 
the authorized card holder. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected 
statements. 

14. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, 
excluding fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 
10) from each statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions 
(i.e., each card should have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each 
transaction, observe it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies 
precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public 
purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal 
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charges only). For missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of 
the transaction and note whether management had a compensating control to 
address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement' that is subject to 
increased scrutiny. 

Findings  

No exceptions were identified in the performance of the procedures listed above. 

Travel and Travel-Related Expenses Reimbursements (Excluding Card Transactions) 

Procedures  

15. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense 
reimbursements during the fiscal period and management's representation that 
the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements, 
obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting 
documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is 
no more than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. 
General Services Administration (www asa.gov). 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe the reimbursement is supported by an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

c) Observe each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the 
business/public purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation 
includes the names of those individuals participating) and other documentation 
required by written policy (procedure #1h). 

d) Observe each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by 
someone other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

Findings  

No exceptions were identified in the performance of the procedures listed above. 

Contracts  

Procedures  

16. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional 
services, materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were 
initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. Alternately, the practitioner may use 
an equiva/ent selection source, such as an active vendor list. Obtain 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excludina the 
practitioners contract, and: 
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a) Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public 
Bid Law (e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

b) Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if 
required by policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe the original contract 
terms provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in 
compliance with the contract terms (e.g., if approval is required for any 
amendment, was approval documented). 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, 
obtain the supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and 
observe the invoice and related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of 
the contract. 

Findings  

No exceptions were identified in the performance of the procedures listed above. 

Payroll and Personnel  

Procedures  

17. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
employees or officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel files, and 
agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

18. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or 
officials selected under #16 above, obtain attendance records and leave 
documentation for the pay period, and: 

a) Observe all selected employees or officials documented their daily 
attendance and leave (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory). 

b) Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the 
selected employees or officials. 

c) Observe any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the 
entity's cumulative leave records. 

d) Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agree to the authorized 
salary/pay rate found within the personnel file. 

19. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments 
during the fiscal period and management's representation that the list is 
complete. Randomly select two employees or officials, obtain related 
documentation of the hours and pay rates used in management's termination 
payment calculations and the entity's policy on termination payments. Agree the 
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hours to the employee or officials' cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates 
to the employee or officials' authorized pay rates in the employee or officials' 
personnel files, and agree the termination payment to entity policy. 

20. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-
party payroll related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health 
insurance premiums, garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have 
been paid, and any associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

Findings  

No exceptions were identified in the performance of the procedures listed above. 

Ethics  

Procedures  

21. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #17 under 
"Payroll and Personnel" above• obtain ethics documentation from management, 
and: 

a) Observe whether the documentation demonstrates each employee/official 
completed one hour of ethics training during the calendar year as required by 
R.S. 42:1170. 

b) Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates each 
employee and official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy 
during the fiscal period, as applicable. 

22. Inquire and/or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as 
required by R.S. 42:1170. 

Findings 

Management asserts the District did not make any changes to their ethics policy during the fiscal year. 
Accordingly, there are no items to report for step 21b. 

No exceptions were identified in the performance of the procedures listed above. 

Debt Service  

Procedures  

23. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal 
period and managemenfs representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt 
instruments on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe State 
Bond Commission approval was obtained for each debt instrument issued. 
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24. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one 
bond/note, inspect debt covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the 
reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve balances and 
payments to those required by debt covenants (including contingency funds, 
short-lived asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

Findings 

Management asserts there was no debt issued during the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023, and the 
District did not have any debt outstanding at September 30, 2023. Accordingly, there are no items to report 
for steps 23 and 24. 

Fraud Notice 

Procedures 

25. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all 
misappropriations on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that 
the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district 
attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled as required by R.S. 24:523. 

26. Observe the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by 
R.S. 24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse 
of public funds. 

Findings 

Management asserts there were no misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal year. 
Accordingly, there are no items to report for step 25. 

No exceptions were identified in the performance of step 26. 

Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

Proced u res  

27. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, 
and report "We performed the procedure and discussed the results with 
management." 

a) Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed 
up its critical data (if no written documentation, then inquire of personnel 
responsible for backing up critical data) and observe that such backup (a) 
occurred within the past week, (b) was not stored on the government's local 
server or network, and (c) was encrypted. 
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b) Obtain and inspect the entitys most recent documentation that it has 
tested/verified that its backups can be restored (if no written documentation, 
inquire of personnel responsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and 
observe evidence that the test/verification was successfully performed within 
the past 3 months. 

c) Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related 
locations, and managemenfs representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select 5 computers and observe while management demonstrates 
that the selected computers have current and active antivirus software and 
that the operating system and accounting system software in use are 
currently supported by the vendor. 

28. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 
5) using the list of terminated employees obtained in procedure #19. Observe 
evidence that the selected terminated employees have been removed or disabled 
from the network. 

Findings  

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

No exceptions were identified in the performance of step 28. 

Sexual Harassment  

Procedures  

29. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #17 under 
"Payroll and Personnel" above, obtain sexual harassment training documentation 
from management, and observe the documentation demonstrates each 
employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training during 
the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343. 

30. Observe the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint 
procedure on its website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if 
the entity does not have a website). 

31. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, 
observe that the report was dated on or before February 1, and observe it includes 
the applicable requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

a) Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed 
the training requirements; 

b) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

c) Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment 
occurred ; 
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d) Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in 
discipline or corrective action; and 

e) Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

Findings 

Management asserts the District did not receive any complaints pertaining to sexual harassment for the 
fiscal year. Accordingly, there are no items to report for steps 31b-31e. 

No exceptions were identified in the performance of steps 29, 30, and 31a. 
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